

Kontron Policy 5.a

Code of Conduct Version 5.0 November 2023

Kontron AG
Industriezeile 35
4020 Linz
FN 190272m, Landesgericht Linz



Change Log

Area of Application:	Kontron Group
Related Process:	Supplier Code of Conduct, Compliance Directive
Author:	Hasmik Baroian-Haftvani
Version:	5.0
Created on:	1 January 2020
Last change on:	20 November 2023
Last change by:	Hasmik Baroian-Haftvani
Released by / on:	Clemens Billek, 20 November 2023
Effective as of:	20 November 2023



Table of Contents

Ch	ange	Log	2		
1	1 Preamble5				
2	Re	sponsibility of the management and each employee	6		
3	Co	Compliance with laws, rules and regulations			
	3.1	General compliance statement	7		
	3.2	Conventions and recommendations of international organizations	7		
4	Fai	r competition and anti-trust laws	9		
	4.1	Conduct towards competitors	9		
	4.2	Conduct towards customers, sales/business partners, suppliers	9		
5	Pro	phibition of corruption and bribery	11		
	5.1	Handling of gifts and invitations	11		
	5.2	Sponsorships, donations, charity events, memberships	12		
6	Co	mbating money laundering	13		
7	Fin	nancial and business records	14		
	7.1	Remuneration and reimbursements	14		
8	Av	oiding conflicts of interest	15		
	8.1	Secondary employments	15		
	8.2	Investments in third-party companies	15		
	8.3	Decisions regarding related persons	15		
9	Hu	man rights and labor practices	16		
	9.1	Ethical recruitment	16		
	9.2	Wages and benefits	16		
	9.3	Working hours	16		
	9.4	Training and skills	16		
	9.5	Young workers and prohibition of child labor	16		
	9.6	Prohibition of modern slavery	17		
	9.7	Deployment of private or public safety forces	17		
	9.8	Diversity, equal opportunities and non-discrimination	17		
	9.9	Freedom of association and collective bargaining	17		
	9.10	Land, forest, water rights, forced eviction and rights of indigenous peop	le17		
10	He	alth and safety	18		
	10.1	Workplace ergonomics	18		
	10.2	Emergency preparedness and response	18		
	10.3	Accident/incident management	18		
	10.4	Personal protective equipment	18		
	10.5	Machine safety	19		

kontron

	10.6	Handling of CBRN hazards	19	
11	Ex	port, import and trade controls	20	
12	Re	sponsible supply chain management	21	
	12.1	Responsible mineral sourcing	21	
	12.2	Reach and RoHS compliance	21	
	12.3	Usage of original parts	21	
13	En	vironmental responsibility	22	
	13.1	Environmental permits and compliance	22	
	13.2	Responsible use of natural resources and pollution prevention	22	
	13.3	Hazardous substances	22	
	13.4	Solid waste management	22	
	13.5	Further development of environmental measures	22	
	13.6	Animal welfare	23	
	13.7	Biodiversity, land use and deforestation	23	
	13.8	Water and soil protection	23	
	13.9	Noise emission	23	
14	На	ndling of information, intellectual property and trade secrets	24	
	14.1	Insider information	24	
	14.2	Trade secrets, intellectual property and confidential information	24	
	14.3	IT security, data protection and privacy laws	25	
	14.4	Third party intellectual property rights	25	
15	Tre	eatment of Kontron/third party property	26	
16	Me	Media and internet27		
17	Mi	sconduct and complaints	28	



1 Preamble

This Code of Conduct expresses the Kontron Group's high standard of integrity. The reputation of our company and the trust of our investors, business partners as well as our Employees is of enormous importance to us. Responsible and lawful conduct is integral to our business activities and our corporate policies and this forms the basis for the long-term success of our company.

This Code of Conduct provides you with information on the conduct that everyone can expect from Kontron AG and its consolidated group companies including all employees ("the Kontron"). The Code of Conduct applies to all employees, including members of the executive board and all managing directors of the Kontron ("Employees"). It establishes the way that our Employees are to conduct themselves in respect to the Kontron in general, colleagues, business partners such as customers and suppliers as well as towards competitors.

The Code of Conduct is a summary of minimum binding guidelines for the Kontron companies worldwide. It must be noted, that additional requirements might apply locally, which cannot be laid down and adopted in a uniform code of conduct across the entire Kontron. International differences in legal and social systems might require local amendments of this Code of Conduct to reflect applicable stricter national standards. In turn, each Kontron company either adopts the same Code of Conduct, or where required, adopts a similar Code of Conduct that meets all standards as laid down herein and adds additional or more stringent local rules and regulations for their business conduct.

However, this Code of Conduct shall not solely show, which expectations the Kontron fulfills, it also shows what we expect from our reliable and trustworthy business partners in return. Therefore, we also expect our business partners to comply with Kontron's high standards and especially Kontron's Supplier, to observe the Code of Conduct for Suppliers, which is also available on our website.



2 Responsibility of the management and each employee

The local implementation of the Code of Conduct is in the responsibility of the managers of each Kontron company. If questions arise in connection with this Code of Conduct, Kontron AG's Legal and Compliance department is available on a 24/7/365 basis to support local companies. Moreover, the Kontron has implemented a worldwide Whistleblower Tool, available on www.kontron.ag to everyone, to report relevant violations of this Code of Conduct and compliance concerns.

Kontron's culture of business integrity and compliance with rules and regulations is driven by all managers. All managers should set an example when performing their duties by attaining an excellent level of achievement, acting transparently, being socially aware and behaving impeccably. Each of them is required to fulfill their duties of organization and supervision in an exemplary way. All managers bear responsibility for the business conduct of the Employees entrusted to them. Each manager must accentuate the importance of ethical conduct and compliance, to maintain them as regular topics of everyday dealings, and to foster these through personal leadership and through training. However, the manager's fulfillment of these responsibilities does not relieve each Employee of their responsibility to comply with this Code of Conduct. In addition, the responsible Employees must ensure that the Code of Conduct for Suppliers is observed and accepted by the respective parties.

This Code of Conduct and the Code of Conduct for Supplier, as amended from time to time, as well as the Whistleblower Tool is available for everyone on Kontron's website (https://whistleblower.kontron.com).



3 Compliance with laws, rules and regulations

3.1 General compliance statement

Everyone working with the Kontron has to obey the applicable laws, rules and regulations of the legal systems within which the Kontron operates, as well as this Code of Conduct and all internal Kontron policies and processes laid down by Kontron AG for its group companies. Each Employee is obliged to adhere to both national and international laws, rules and regulations, and to act in accordance with them. Kontron also requires all of its Employees to abide by laws as part of their personal conduct, to meet their personal responsibilities, and to refrain from any activities that may be detrimental to the reputation of the Kontron. The Kontron acts in strict compliance with general anti-corruption laws as well as anti-trust and competition laws. Moreover, the Kontron acts in strict compliance with securities and insider trading laws and demonstrates a professional awareness for money laundering prevention.

3.2 Conventions and recommendations of international organizations

In addition to laws, rules and regulations of individual countries, there are a number of important conventions and recommendations issued by international organizations. Although these documents primarily pertain to and cover member states and thus not directly multinational companies, such standards do nevertheless serve as important guidelines for the latter's conduct and for that of Employees. Kontron observes the stipulations of these conventions and recommendations. Kontron therefore expects its Employees, suppliers and business partners around the globe to recognize and apply them, particularly in relation to the:

- International Bill of Human Rights, consisting of: Universal Declaration of Human Rights; International Covenant of 19 December 1966 on Civil and Political Rights, (Federal Law Gazette 1973 II pp. 1533, 1534); and International Covenant of 19 December 1966 on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights (Federal Law Gazette 1973 II pp. 1569, 1570);
- > European Convention on Human Rights;
- ILO (International Labour Organization) Tripartite Declaration of Principles on Multinational Enterprises and Social Policy and ILO Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, and fundamental freedoms, in particular, as follows:
 - elimination of child labor, minimum age (especially ILO Convention No. 182 and No. 138),
 - abolition of forced labor (especially ILO Convention No. 105, ILO Convention No. 29 and Protocol of 11 June 2014 to Convention No. 29),
 - > prohibition of discrimination (especially ILO Convention No. 111 and equal remuneration for men and women ILO Convention No. 100),
 - > freedom of association and the right to collective bargaining (especially ILO Convention No. 87 and No. 98);
- Minamata Convention on Mercury of 10 October 2013 (Federal Law Gazette 2017 II p. 610, 611)
 (Minamata Convention);
- Stockholm Convention of 23 May 2001 on Persistent Organic Pollutants (Federal Law Gazette 2002 II pp. 803, 804) (POPs Convention), last amended by the decision of 6 May 2005 (Federal Law Gazette 2009 II pp. 1060, 1061);



- > Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal of 22 March 1989 (Federal Law Gazette 1994 II pp. 2703, 2704) (Basel Convention), as last amended by the Third Ordinance amending Annexes to the Basel Convention of 22 March 1989 of 6 May 2014 (Federal Law Gazette II pp. 306/307);
- OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises
- "Agenda 21" on Sustainable Development (concluding document of the founding UN Conference on the Environment and Development)
- > UN Convention against Corruption
- > UN Convention on the Rights of the Child UN Conventions on the Elimination on all Forms of Discriminations
- > OECD Convention against Bribery of Foreign Public Officials

Moreover, Kontron adheres to the material principles set by "UN Global Compact" and aims to reach the principles by "Responsible Business Alliance". The Kontron can identify with the standards laid down and aims to comply with the high standards up until now and in the future. The Kontron intends also to promote these principles to its supply chain.



4 Fair competition and anti-trust laws

The Kontron conducts its business in a fair manner and supports free, undistorted and effective competition for the benefit of customers, companies, and society as a whole. Kontron aims to have long-term business relationships with its current and future customers based on the excellent quality of Kontron's products and services provided, and not based on illegal practices.

The Kontron adheres to international and national competition laws and anti-trust laws, when doing business in the respective countries. This commitment ensures that business activities adhere to the rules of fair competition. The responsible Employees and managers attend special training courses on a regular basis and follow the internal guidelines of Kontron AG for the careful selection of business partners.

4.1 Conduct towards competitors

The Kontron will not enter into any anticompetitive agreements or arrangements with competitors. "Illegal agreements and arrangements between competitors" are defined to be between companies pursuing the same business activities on the same market. Certain kinds of conduct can result in contraventions of fair competition and anti-trust laws. To preclude these, Employees are not allowed to:

- (i) confer with competitors about prices, markets, output, capacities, sales, bids, profits, profit margins, costs, methods of distribution or any other fact or factor that determines or influences the company's competitive behavior, and specifically in cases in which this is designed to elicit accompanying behavior from the competitor;
- > (ii) enter into an agreement or arrangement with a competitor foreseeing a refraining from competition; restrict dealings with suppliers; submit bogus offers for bidding; or to allocations on customers, markets, territories or production programs;
- (iii) exert influence on the resale prices charged by our purchasers, or to attempt to make them restrict the exporting or importing of goods supplied by Kontron. In addition, Employees are not to obtain intelligence on competitors or markets by resorting to industrial espionage, bribery, theft or electronic eavesdropping. Nor are they to knowingly communicate erroneous information about a competitor or its products or services.

4.2 Conduct towards customers, sales/business partners, suppliers

The Kontron also supports open competition in our relationships with customers, sales/business partners, and suppliers. Therefore, Employees will undertake not to discuss with customers, sales/business partners, or suppliers about:

- (i) adherence to resale prices. In many cases, however, non-binding recommendations, without pressure or incentives, regarding resale prices and the establishment of maximum sale prices are permissible; or
- (ii) obstruction of exports or re-imports.

Anti-competitive behavior can have serious consequences. These include the levying of fines amounting to up to 10 percent of the Kontron's annual worldwide turnover; the exclusion from tendering for public contracts; imprisonment and serious damaging of the reputation of the Kontron (including damages claimed by third parties). Please note that fines can also be imposed in cases in which the impeding of



competition was not intentionally. It's the responsibility of each Employee of the Kontron to act ir	strict
compliance with all applicable competition and anti-trust-laws.	



5 Prohibition of corruption and bribery

The Kontron competes on a worldwide scale for contracts awarded by public-sector entities and government-owned businesses. It is of essential importance for the Kontron to be in strict compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to government procurement, with this encompassing those regulations that prohibit attempts to improperly influence government officials as well as private business partners.

Kontron does not tolerate any form of corruption in our business dealings anywhere in the world. Kontron is successful due to the offered quality and features of our innovative products, our customer-oriented service and the expertise of all Kontron's Employees. Payments made by the Kontron companies shall always have a legitimate purpose and shall be properly documented.

A number of anti-corruption standards have been promulgated at international level and implemented at national level. The latter laws and regulations prohibit bribery and corrupting acts in all and any forms. These include the UK's Bribery Act and the USA's Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. They are strictly enforced and have a worldwide scope of application.

Employees shall report all suspected corrupt activity to Kontron's Legal and Compliance department.

Corruption is not a minor offense. The same applies to any form of extortion. These are illegal activities. Employees are obliged to refrain from all forms of corrupt conduct, either directly or indirectly. This particularly applies to attempts to influence decision-makers working for business partners or in the public sector by offering, promising or awarding impermissible advantages; or by authorizing, directing, approving or condoning such conduct by any other person. Promises, offers, invitations and gifts are not to be made in cases in which they might be deemed to be an attempt to improperly influence a public official or a business partner.

In general, Employees shall be sensitized to indications of unlawful conduct, to which the careful selection of business partners is inextricably linked.

5.1 Handling of gifts and invitations

The most common form of corruption is bribery. The Kontron does not tolerate any form of bribery, regardless if it's made directly or indirectly through third parties. Bribery is the act of offering, promising, or giving money, gifts, or other benefit to a public official or public or private Employee with the aim of receiving improper advantages. Bribery is a criminal offense worldwide.

To preclude these, by taking into account the local circumstances, Employees are not allowed to:

- give or accept excessive gifts or invitations for entertainment events;
- y give or accept excessive travel expenses;
- give or accept inappropriate donations, sponsorship or memberships;
- give or accept inappropriate monetary payments (including facilitation payments);
- y give or accept any other improper benefits to or from current/potential business partners.

In many cultures, gifts and invitations to entertainment events are important for developing and deepening business relationships. Especially when it comes to gifts or any kind of payments or benefit without contractual basis, such grants may be considered inappropriate if they exceed a value of approx. EUR 100,00 per business partner every half-year. Therefore "business partner" means the company (or



individual) connected by the business relationship and all of its Employees. Inappropriate grants must be politely refused, unless local regulations stipulate otherwise. In no case shall any gifts and invitations unreasonably influence the recipient's decision-making or create the appearance of improper influence. Therefore, each Employee shall take care that gifts and hospitality will be solely accepted or offered limited to a reasonable extent. Employees are not allowed to offer to public authorities, civil servants, other officials and representatives of public organizations gifts or invitations or offer and grant cash payments or other advantages of any kind, which could influence their actions or decisions. For local thresholds on gifts and invitations, your local manager can give you further details. Each Employee is requested to consult with their supervisor in cases of uncertainties as to the valuation of gifts and the ceilings placed on such, and on the appropriateness of these. The ensuing, jointly-reached decision shall be properly documented.

5.2 Sponsorships, donations, charity events, memberships

Sponsorships, donations, charity events and memberships must always be carefully examined to determine whether they promote the company's legitimate objectives. This shall not be promised, offered, or made to obtain improper business advantages or for other unethical purposes.



6 Combating money laundering

Money laundering is the process of disguising the nature and source of money arising from the pursuit of criminal activities, such as terrorism, drug trafficking or bribery – and then feeding such "dirty money" into streams of finance and business. Such laundering is undertaken to give the money the appearance of being legal, and to conceal its source or the identity of its owner.

The Kontron strives to maintain business relationships only with reputable business partners whose business activities comply with legal requirements and whose financial resources are of legitimate origin. All Employees are required to follow record-keeping and accounting requirements when pursuing cash-based and other kinds of payment transactions.

The responsible Employees and managers of Kontron attend special training courses on a regular basis and follow the internal guidelines of Kontron AG for the careful selection of business partners, to avoid any contact with money laundering.



7 Financial and business records

The Kontron is committed to accurate and truthful reporting to investors, Employees, customers, business partners, the public, all government agencies and other stakeholders. We follow all applicable laws, regulations, standards, and practices, especially regarding tax and commercial law retention requirements for annual financial statements, accounting vouchers, etc.

All Kontron Employees ensure that business and financial records are correct, truthful and complete. All books and records are to depict each transaction or expenditure in an objective and true way. Their entering and maintenance are to be undertaken in a prompt manner. Books and records are to be kept up-to date. Books and records will be always prepared on time and will be in accordance with the applicable rules and accounting standards. Such books and records include all data, certificates, and other written materials provided for financial reporting and disclosure purposes, and materials collected for other purposes. Each Kontron company provides correct and complete information for financial reporting purposes. All transactions must be reflected correctly for tax purposes.

Non-compliant behavior might cause a risk of being subject to investigations (e.g. for accounting/tax, fraud, money laundering). Such investigations could have a negative impact on the Kontron, its reputation and its Employees.

7.1 Remuneration and reimbursements

Remuneration and Reimbursements (e.g. discounts) to contractual partners may only be paid on a contractual or objectively comprehensible basis, to the business accounts of the business partners only and shall be documented in writing properly ensuring that the date and time of the documentation is transparent.



8 Avoiding conflicts of interest

All Employees are obliged to conduct themselves in ways preventing the arising of conflicts of interest that may be detrimental to the Kontron. All Employees must therefore maintain a clear distinction between the interests of the Kontron and their own personal interests. There is a conflict of interest in day-to-day business if an Employees personal interests differ from those of the Kontron or personal interests could influence their business-related decisions or behavior.

8.1 Secondary employments

Any intention to take up additional paid employment outside the Kontron must be sent in writing to the Human Resources department and to the supervisor of the Employee in advance for approval. Approval for the secondary employment may be declined if it is perceived to lower the Employee's performance level at the workplace, if it is inconsistent with the Employee's duties within the Kontron or if there is the risk of a conflict of interests. Stricter work-related regulations in the employment agreement, if any, remain unaffected. This also applies to supervisory board or advisory board activities in external companies. However, Employees are encouraged to do occasional writing, lecturing, and similar activities, which are not regarded as secondary employment.

8.2 Investments in third-party companies

Each Employee shall inform HR in writing of any direct or indirect investment in third party companies:

- that are business partners of the Kontron, meaning if the Employee is engaged in business with the third-party company or has a board or management role in the third-party-company. With respect to publicly traded companies, this only applies if the investment exceeds five percent of its total capital; or
- that compete with the Kontron, if the Employee can influence the management of the competitor through this investment. This is presumed if the interest exceeds five percent of the total capital of the company.

The holding - direct or indirect — of shares in companies that are competitors of the Kontron that give rise to an entrepreneurial influence requires the prior securing of approval by the Executive Board. Employees shall not undertake to operate or work for a company that competes with the Kontron and Employees shall not engage in any activity that competes with the Kontron.

8.3 Decisions regarding related persons

Employees must report transactions or decisions relating to relatives or other closely associated persons in due time to the local management, make sure there is a written approval from their local management prior to the transactions taking place and make sure, the transactions are documented in writing together with the written approval. This includes all business or personnel decisions concerning the Kontron with regard to the following relatives or related persons:

Spouse, partner, life partner, parents (in law), (half) step-children, (half/step) siblings, other persons living in domestic community, other persons with whom there is a personal/economic close relationship.



9 Human rights and labor practices

9.1 Ethical recruitment

Kontron promotes transparent and objective recruiting and hiring processes that are aligned with the organization's values and its commitment to Diversity, Equity and Inclusion. Employees are hired lawfully and in a fair manner that respects and protects their rights.

The principle of equal opportunity and non-discrimination is strictly observed in recruitment and throughout the entire Employee cycle – recruitment, onboarding, learning and development. Employees and job applicants will not be discriminated against on grounds of gender, age, race, faith or religion, skin color, nationality, ethnic origin, political or other beliefs, sexual orientation, disabilities, or family status.

Kontron also provides the same level of information to all foreign applicants, candidates and employees, including details of (i) the likely cost of living in the area the prospective employer is situated, (ii) the likely duration of the employment in question and (iii) the state of the employment market in the field the applicant, candidate or employee is being recruited into. All information will be provided free of charge to the applicant, candidate, or Employee.

9.2 Wages and benefits

Each Kontron company offers fair and reasonable wages to their Employees. Each Kontron company respects all applicable laws related to minimum wages and compensation laws. The Kontron respects the equal pay principles, meaning no discrimination is made on the basis of gender. Benefits are available to every Employee of the Kontron according to the applicable regulations.

9.3 Working hours

The Kontron adheres to all applicable working-hours regulations globally. Especially Employees working from home/mobile offices are explicitly advised to strictly not exceed the maximum working hours.

9.4 Training and skills

Kontron offers internal and external education programs and training courses in order to provide appropriate support for its Employees. Besides technical and social skills, training is also provided regularly throughout the group on security awareness, data protection and compliance.

9.5 Young workers and prohibition of child labor

The employment of young workers is only permissible in compliance with the international and national regulations regarding the minimum age of young workers. All forms of child labor are prohibited. Kontron acts in particular in accordance with the two fundamental ILO conventions on child labor (Convention No. 138 on Minimum Age and Convention No. 182 on the Worst Forms of Child Labor).

Kontron companies have appropriate measures and control mechanisms installed to ensure compliance with this provision. Under no circumstances will Kontron accept any violations of this provision in its supply chain.



9.6 Prohibition of modern slavery

All forms of modern slavery, such as forced or bonded or servitude or compulsory labor, human trafficking or practices similar to that, especially other forms of domination or oppression are strictly prohibited and Kontron will not tolerate any violation of this provision in its supply chain.

Kontron companies installed appropriate measures to ensure compliance with this provision.

9.7 Deployment of private or public safety forces

Kontron ensures respecting human rights and is bound by the Code of Conduct. The use of private or public security forces shall be refrained from if, during their use/deployment, persons are subjected to inhuman or degrading treatment or restrictions on freedom of association.

9.8 Diversity, equal opportunities and non-discrimination

The Kontron's staff is comprised of individuals of a variety of ethnic backgrounds, cultures, religions, ages, levels of ability (disabilities), races, sexual identities and persuasion, genders and mindsets. The diversity of our staff constitutes a driving force of the successes achieved by the Kontron. All Employees are treated equally. The Kontron does not tolerate discrimination against anyone evincing any of these characteristics. It especially does not tolerate sexual harassment or any other form of aggression towards individuals. These principles apply on internal as well as on external levels. They also encompass dealings with partners. The Kontron's policy is to employ staff that possess the highest degrees of motivation and capabilities. The Kontron actively promotes the equal opportunities of all individuals, regardless of the specifics of the above characteristics, in all positions including management roles, supported by internal group policies and guidelines.

9.9 Freedom of association and collective bargaining

Kontron respects the freedom of association and the right to collective bargaining. Employees are free to exercise their rights and are no subject to any form of harassment or reprisal from Kontron.

9.10 Land, forest, water rights, forced eviction and rights of indigenous people

Kontron does not engage in forced eviction or the unlawful appropriation of land, forests and waters when acquiring, developing, or otherwise using land, forests, and waters. Particularly in need of protection are also the rights of indigenous peoples, whose displacement or negative impact must be ruled out. Kontron expects all Employees to support local communities and indigenous peoples in the vicinity of Group companies. In particular, high value is placed on compliance with national and international legal and regulatory requirements.



10 Health and safety

Kontron promotes the health, safety and well-being of its Employees. Each Kontron company guards its Employees against the risk of work-related accidents and occupational diseases. A safe work environment for each Employee shall be ensured by each Kontron company by taking into account local law requirements and regulations. Employees shall be supported in maintaining physical and mental health.

All Employees demonstrate their personal commitment by always recognizing, encouraging and exhibiting safe behavior and using safety principles. All of Kontron's efforts are focused on the continuous improvement of safety standards as well as a security best practices throughout the Kontron. Kontron complies with all applicable local laws and regulations in countries where Kontron is present, as well as maintaining and developing its own defined safety standards and guidelines. Employees are encouraged to report any unsafe conditions in their work environment to their supervisor.

10.1 Workplace ergonomics

Workplace ergonomics plays a crucial role in keeping Employees fit and healthy throughout their working lives. Kontron provides a safe and healthful workplace for its Employees. While ergonomic work stations provide optimal working conditions, technical aids facilitate the work of Employees and promote favorable ergonomic postures. At most Kontron's offices and work sites, company physicians are available to provide medical treatment in the workplace and advice on ergonomic workplace design.

10.2 Emergency preparedness and response

Kontron is committed to taking reasonable measures to ensure safety of the workplace in accordance with national requirements, in order to prevent emergencies, work accidents and to protect the health of its Employees. These include procedures for notification and evacuation of Employees, emergency training and drills, first-aider training, availability of appropriate first-aid materials, adequate fire detection and suppression equipment and sufficient exit facilities. Valid local regulations on occupational protection, health and safety in the workplace, as well as building safety and fire protection have been observed, to reduce the risk of accidents and work-related illnesses to a minimum. Kontron provides all Employees with regular training to develop their security awareness and behavior.

10.3 Accident/incident management

Kontron ensures that arrangements are made for emergency management and response in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. These include Employee alerting and evacuation, dispatching of first-aiders and application of fire extinguishing equipment.

10.4 Personal protective equipment

The Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) provides a high level of safety and complies with legal requirements. Its purpose is to reduce Employee exposure to hazards when engineering and administrative controls are not feasible or effective to minimize this risk to an acceptable level. Whenever necessary and reasonable, Employees are provided with appropriate Personal Protective Equipment. Kontron provides such equipment free of charge and ensures that it is in good working order and hygienic condition.



10.5 Machine safety

Kontron is committed to creating a safe and compliant work environment for its Employees. In this regard, the machine safety is of paramount importance. Kontron ensures preventive service and maintenance of all machines and work equipment as applicable. In addition, work tools are equipped with appropriate protective devices to prevent injury to workers from contusions, cuts, burns, etc. Kontron provides machine safety training to all Employees before they are allowed to operate any machine.

10.6 Handling of CBRN hazards

Kontron protects its Employees from all chemical, biological, radiological and nuclear (CBRN) work-related hazards. Appropriate risk mitigation includes technical, organizational, personal and informal measures. In particular, if potentially hazardous substances and processes can't be avoided, Kontron takes into account occupational health and safety. All related health and safety measures mentioned above apply. Wherever possible Kontron strive to substitute them with less hazardous ones.



11 Export, import and trade controls

The importing and exporting of products and services are highly regulated. The Kontron complies with all applicable export controls and customs regulations in the countries in which it does business. Export controls generally apply to the dispatching of goods, services, hardware, software and technologies across certain national borders, including those pursued by email. Such laws can be applied to the direct and indirect exporting to and importing from countries upon which sanctions have been imposed. These laws also apply to third party countries under suspicion for reasons of their possibly posing threats to national security or being involved in criminal activities. Contraventions of these laws and stipulations can give rise to major-scale punishment and penalties, including fines and officially decreed exclusions from simplified import and export regulations. All Employees whose work entails dealing with imports and exports are obliged to observe all applicable laws and stipulations.

If any doubt arises as to whether import or export is permissible or sanctions could be associated with it, the Employees must immediately notify the local management before proceeding with this export or import in writing.



12 Responsible supply chain management

The Kontron also published a separate "Kontron Supplier Code of Conduct" (https://www.kontron.ag/about/corporate-governance/) setting forth minimum requirements directly addressed to Kontron suppliers, which describes the Kontron's expectations towards its business partners within its supply chain.

12.1 Responsible mineral sourcing

The Kontron is committed to avoiding the use of raw materials in its products, which originate from high-risk areas and/or conflict-affected areas and therefore potentially support human rights abuse, corruption, the financing of armed groups, terrorism or equivalent circumstances. Insofar as applicable to each Kontron company (by taking into account its business model), the Kontron established a procedure to avoid in-scope conflict minerals. Kontron companies shall adopt a reasonable policy and exercise reasonable due diligences on the source and chain of custody of the tantalum, tin, tungsten, and gold, as well as other critical mineral resources, in the products they manufacture. This is to reasonably assure, that they are sourced in a way consistent with the OECD Guidance for Responsible Supply Chains of Minerals from Conflict Affected and High-Risk Areas or a comparable due diligence framework.

12.2 Reach and RoHS compliance

Kontron companies ensure also the compliance with REACH, RoHS and other applicable regulations in regard to product-related requirements.

12.3 Usage of original parts

Kontron companies source only original parts for its products and services. The Kontron companies maintain effective methods and processes to identify and minimize the risk of introducing counterfeit parts and materials into its products. Kontron companies invest a great deal of effort in ensuring counterfeit parts are neither sourced directly nor indirectly through their supply chain. The Kontron expects from its suppliers that they implement appropriate measures to safeguard high compliance with the requirements of this provision.



13 Environmental responsibility

13.1 Environmental permits and compliance

Kontron companies comply with all applicable environmental legislations, including laws and regulations regarding prohibition or restriction of specific substances, labeling laws and regulations for recycling and disposal. All required environmental permits and registrations are obtained, maintained, and kept current, and operational and reporting requirements are followed.

Resource efficiency and ecological aspects are also observed in collaboration with Kontron's business partners, suppliers and customers. If there are ecological aspects, Employees find noteworthy, they should send an informal email to the ESG team (esg@kontron.com) to report it as ESG measure.

13.2 Responsible use of natural resources and pollution prevention

All Kontron companies are requested to avoid and reduce waste of all types, e.g. the reduction of water consumption as well as to promote the reduced usage of energy, fossil fuels, minerals and other resources, including raw materials and to ensure energy efficiency and a sustainable resources management in general. The usage of renewable energy sources, such as from photovoltaic systems, is encouraged over the usage of non-renewable energy sources. Moreover, all Kontron companies are requested to take measures to minimize their pollution, including carbon and greenhouse gas emissions. This can be implemented by several measures e.g. reducing business travel, optimization of facilities and business operation processes.

13.3 Hazardous substances

Kontron companies identify, label, and manage to ensure the safe handling, movement, storage, use, recycling or reuse, and disposal of chemicals, waste, and other materials posing a hazard to humans or the environment. All Employees inform their respective superior immediately if they notice or are informed of the release of such substances, so that appropriate measures can be taken in due time. Furthermore, the concerned Employees, the department head or the local management shall also inform ESG team about such instances and the measures taken (esg@kontron.com).

13.4 Solid waste management

Kontron companies shall implement a reasonable systematic approach to identify, manage, reduce, and responsibly dispose of or recycle solid waste.

13.5 Further development of environmental measures

The Kontron has a clear understanding of the environmental impacts and responsibilities that the Kontron associates with its business conduct and the products/services provided. The Kontron has several processes in place to mitigate negative environmental impact by reasonable efforts. All Kontron companies are requested to establish a reasonable environmental management system, aligned to the material requirements of ISO 14001. The Kontron is committed to constantly improve its sustainability performance. Moreover, the Kontron expects its suppliers to contribute to Kontron's environmental objectives and to collaborate with Kontron to improve the environmental performance of the Kontron's supply chain.



Therefore, Kontron companies verify and screen their main suppliers based also applying ESG (environmental, social, governance) criteria. Learn more about the Kontron's sustainability strategy by reading Kontron's annual Sustainability Report, available under https://www.kontron.ag/esg/, which points out the measures and objectives in more detail.

13.6 Animal welfare

The responsible treatment of living beings is part of Kontron's values. Compliance with national and international legal standards on animal protection and animal welfare is a matter of course.

Kontron is committed to implementing high animal welfare and traceability standards in its business operations. In particular, Kontron is committed to the highest standards for endangered species and condemns any mistreatment of animals.

13.7 Biodiversity, land use and deforestation

Kontron's sustainability strategy aims to protect and restore biodiversity – with a particular focus on forests and land. For Kontron, protection of the environment includes protection of biodiversity. Kontron 's business activities do not involve native forest conversion and/or unsustainable logging and promote conservation of natural forests as well as their ecosystem services and biodiversity. Kontron aims to avoid deforestation in all forms. All Kontron activities minimize disturbance to protected areas and local flora and fauna.

13.8 Water and soil protection

Kontron ensures that it does not cause harmful soil contamination, water pollution, air pollution, noise emissions or avoidable greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Healthy soils are essential for achieving climate neutrality, a clean and circular economy halting desertification and land degradation. They are also essential to reserve biodiversity loss, provide healthy food and safeguard human health. To this end, Kontron implements management systems to measure, mitigate and demonstrate continuous improvements of environmental impacts of its own operations and along its value chains.

Furthermore, Kontron shall not cause excessive water consumption that adversely affects human health, access to clean water or sanitation or that has a significant negative impact on the natural resources needed to preserve and produce food.

13.9 Noise emission

Kontron aims to reduce noise emissions at various production sites, including relevant noise pollution by freight traffic from external suppliers. Kontron has implemented operating procedures to comply with applicable legal requirements on noise emission. To minimize the impact of noise on environment and people from the outset, noise control measures are taken into consideration as early as the planning of production processes and also during the modification or reconstruction of existing sites. In addition, noise reduction is taken into consideration in the development of logistic concepts to reflect the significance of this issue in the public awareness.



14 Handling of information, intellectual property and trade secrets

14.1 Insider information

Kontron AG's stock is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. As a listed company, the Kontron AG is subject to the stringent requirements imposed on players on capital markets. The efficiency of the financial market is to a large degree based on the confidence accorded to it by its participants, with this particularly applying to the accessibility of public information and to the non-disclosure of confidential information and insider information. "Insider information" is information of a precise nature, which has not been made public, relating, directly or indirectly, to one or more issuers or to one or more financial instruments, and which, if it were made public, would be likely to have a significant effect on the prices of those financial instruments or on the price of related derivative financial instruments (Art 7 (1) a Market Abuse Regulation).

The Kontron is therefore obliged to maintain a particularly high level of care when handling non-public information respectively insider information. This is undertaken to ensure that all market participants enjoy the same opportunities and conditions. All information to which stock quotes respond in a sensitive manner is strictly confidential. The misuse of insider information is strictly prohibited (regardless of whether a confidentiality agreement or an insider declaration is signed). This misuse is a criminal offense. All legal requirements and compliance regulations are to be adhered to when handling insider information. The obligation to maintain secrecy exists without limitation after the termination of the relationship of employment. In addition, certain proprietary transactions by the members of the Kontron AG Executive and Supervisory Boards with securities or other financial instruments of Kontron AG (so-called "directors' dealings") must be disclosed by them and by Kontron AG. Specific regulations regarding the handling of insider information are laid down in the Compliance Directive of Kontron AG, applicable to all relevant Employees in addition to this Code of Conduct.

In cases of any doubts or questions related to handling of insider information or any incidents regarding the confidential handling of insider information please contact Kontron's compliance team under: compliance@kontron.com.

14.2 Trade secrets, intellectual property and confidential information

Employees are obliged to handle non-public information (e.g. trade secrets, intellectual property and confidential information) confidentially, and they must ensure that it is not accessible to third parties. Third parties are defined also to be family members, friends and acquaintances, individuals not working with or for Kontron as well as Employees of Kontron, for whom access to such non-public information is not required to perform their duties in a professional manner. The confidentiality of information about operational secrets and business secrets must be strictly safeguarded. Kontron's corporate assets (including trade secrets, intellectual property rights, and know how) are essential to the Kontron's business success. For this reason, each Kontron company shall ensure that these assets are handled responsibly and are fully protected. All Employees undertake to refrain from disclosing confidential internal matters or confidential information concerning Kontron's own business or those of Kontron's business partners or suppliers. Confidential information includes information marked as such and information that by its very nature should not be made public, in particular business and operating secrets, intellectual property and know how as well as unpublished figures in reporting and accounting documentation. The same applies to information



of Kontron business partners or suppliers. Appropriate technical and organizational measures are taken by each Kontron company by taking into account its size and business to secure trade secrets, personal data, any other confidential information relating to the company as well as confidential information from third parties.

In case any mentioned non-public information comes to the attention of third parties, Employees must immediately inform their supervisor, the local management and the compliance team under: compliance@kontron.com.

14.3 IT security, data protection and privacy laws

Each Kontron company complies with the Kontron Group IT Security Framework as well as the GDPR compliance framework. Confidential information must be protected from unauthorized access. Within the Kontron, information is only to be shared with those Employees who require it to handle their professional responsibilities. The duty of Employees to maintain secrecy also applies after the termination of employment.

The Kontron respects all applicable privacy laws (including GDPR as well as local laws applicable to each Kontron company) and every Kontron company ensures the safety and protection of data in an appropriate and lawful manner. As a result of the future changes and developments in this area, Kontron pays particular attention to the privacy and security requirements of business-to-business (B2B) contracts and is continuously working to integrate them into its structure, organization and processes.

If any questions arise regarding IT Security, Data Protection or Privacy Laws or if Employees notice violations (e.g. of the respective framework or regulations), please contact privacy@kontron.com.

14.4 Third party intellectual property rights

Kontron respects the intellectual property rights of third parties (such as trademarks, patents, designs, copyrights, trade secrets and tangible assets) to the best of its knowledge. Third party intellectual property rights are utilized only after having properly secured rights to its use.



15 Treatment of Kontron/third party property

Employees are obliged to treat Kontron's property and resources (such as telephones, copiers, fax machines, multifunctional office equipment, PCs including software and other licenses as well as intranet/internet, company cars and other tools provided by Kontron for the performance of working activities) with the greatest care. Company property and resources are to be used carefully and sustainably; solely for business purposes, unless approval for private usage has been given by Kontron AG or the respective Kontron companies. The same shall apply also in regard to third party property, e.g. property of Kontron's customers or business partners.



16 Media and internet

Since Kontron AG is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and operating international, Kontron AG is in the focus of a broad public and subject to strict legal requirements for the publication of corporate matters. Uniform and factual communication is particularly important for Kontron AG. Therefore, it is the responsibility of the Management Board and the respective investor relations department to provide information on the development of the Kontron as a whole, business sectors and business backgrounds.

Any questions regarding such topics of Kontron as a whole should be referred to the investor relations team under: ir@kontron.com .

The development of the local business of the respective company and information in this regard, is at the discretion of the concerned local company, as far as the Kontron as a whole is not affected.



17 Misconduct and complaints

Violations of norms of professional behavior and other forms of professional misconduct have serious consequences for the Employee and for the Kontron. Misconduct will not be tolerated. The managers of the Kontron are to serve as role models in this regard. The Kontron punishes each case of willfully-committed and unlawful misconduct and any violations of internal guidelines. This is done in a consistent way. The punishment does not take into account the Employee's rank or position in the corporation.

All Employees as well as any third parties are entitled to report cases of contraventions of compliance regulations, be they proven or suspected. This is to be done via the whistleblower reporting channel: https://whistleblower.kontron.com or – if desired –

- directly to a member of the Executive Board of Kontron AG or
- directly to the Kontron Compliance Management Team under compliance@kontron.com
- directly to a senior manager or to the Employee's superior.

Additionally, Kontron has introduced a telephone hotline (24/7) for anonymous reporting. The hotline is accessible via the following numbers:

0800 / 700 799 (toll-free from Austria) +43 1 80191 1194 (international)

All complaints can be submitted at any time both confidentially and anonymously. The Kontron places great importance on its Employees' being willing to report cases of breaches of compliance codes, and suspicions of such, and of being able to do such without fear of incurring legal, professional or personal disadvantages. All complaints will be investigated. Corrective measures will be implemented if necessary. All documentation will be kept confidential to the extent permitted by law. No reprisal of any kind against complainants will be tolerated.